7/3/12

It is with such sadness that I write to tell you that Andy's sister Karen ( 53 last Nov )  died last Tuesday 28th Feb. She had fought so  valiantly against the onslaught of malignant melanoma for nearly three years. At the end she was in hospital and peacefully asleep. In early January we all enjoyed a lovely post Christmas lunch together but within a couple of  weeks  she became very poorly. 
It has as you can imagine been such a hard time for her husband Michael, daughter Sarah, son Jon,  her Mum and Dad, Mollie and Ray and of course her brother Andy, Suzie Gareth and I.  Karen's funeral is next week 15th March in Farnborough. I ask you to keep the family in your thoughts and prayers this will be so much appreciated. 

4/5 At last we have had our leave approved by work and so have booked flights  to visit Kansas in June. Andy and I will fly into Kansas City Intl. airport at 16:56 on June 8th. We have hired a car ( with GPS/ Sat-Nav )  which we will pick up at the airport. We have also booked to stay at the Hampton Inn Kansas City/ Shawnee Mission Midland Dr. for 7 nights. We depart Kansas City Intl at 11:03 June 15th. Sadly this is a short trip but I hope we will be able to use our time well. 
11.5


For my birthday I did have such  a lovely day we spent the day together and had a lovely meal at the Barge Hotel in Swineshead nearby. On Sunday evening Gareth asked to use my car for a bit....he went and arrived back with Suzie. They had secretly arranged for her to come home by train from Uni at Nottingham and for  Gareth to collect her from Boston station...they had me in tears!  It was such a lovely surprise. We had a lovely day and a bit just us together, Andy had a days leave too. It was the best present ever. Suzie had already gone back to Uni and Gareth was still at home until we drove him back to Leicester with a car load of stuff last weekend. 

Times recently have been very muddled indeed just too many incidents needing, so so much of our time. My elderly Uncle George ( Dad's brother) he is now 81 has been showing increasing signs of Dementia. Problem is he lives alone in his own house with a cat and dog in Kansas USA. We have been chatting with him regularly each Sunday via web-cam for many years, until last Christmas when his computer didn't appear to be working too well, the connection wasn't good,  often we couldn't hear him or he couldn't see us. This didn't get any better so we went back to Sunday phone calls, then a month or so ago they also stopped and we kept trying to contact him and phone him  then a close friend contacted us and told us how things really are there; and here we are  now! Andy and I are having to rapidly plan a short visit to Kansas to help him move into assisted living. Also getting his house cleared and on the market. It is all so sensitive but difficult.  It has been so difficult with the 6 hour time difference contacting the various authorities for help. That week is about the only time we could shoehorn in, Suzie has her exhibition, then in July her graduation, we have two weddings to attend ( although we'd have cancelled them if needed) and we have to get Gareth to Winchester with his belongings at the end of June. Plus the Jubilee holiday is causing problems for staffing the Pharmacy. 

At last we have had our leave approved by work and so have booked flights  to visit Kansas in June. Andy and I will fly into Kansas City Intl. airport at 16:56 on June 8th. We have hired a car ( with GPS/ Sat-Nav )  which we will pick up at the airport. We have also booked to stay at  a hotel nearby as his house isn't in a good shape. We depart Kansas City Intl at 11:03 June 15th. Sadly this is a short trip but I hope we will be able to use our time well. It seems he isn't very mobile so he hasn't been good at cleaning, All this we couldn't see via web cam sadly and thought although arthritic we felt he was managing OK. We should be excited at the prospect of a trans Atlantic trip but I fear it won't be much of a holiday. Oh well it has to be done. My sisters are doing most of the phone calls as Helen works from home. Mum and Dad really aren't able to do much nowadays. 
On the much brighter side 
Suzie is working so very hard to present her last Photographic exhibition for her Final Degree show at the Artists Gallery in Nottingham. Suzie had to find a venue,  pay for it and arrange all the details of exhibiting her photos by herself. This is so important for her; her future may well depend on the outcome of this exhibition. Andy and I  are so proud of all her many achievements over the past three years. 
We just hope that her photos are well received and help her achieve a good degree..and eventually in the summer a job! 

Gareth also has had considerable achievements this year 1st 's in ALL his exams, he has the amazing chance  with IBM this summer. He has a paid Intern-ship for 12 weeks; he was one of 14 chosen from many 1000's world wide. It was a long process of three separate days of interviews at Winchester, after the initial selection by  two arduous on-line interviews  We are all so proud of him. He is president of the Computer Society at University of Leicester. It seems he's become a very good cook as well as Suzie who we already knew kept her flatmates well fed. Suzie gets them all helping on Sundays to prepare a meal together 
she just loves it we usually get a photo of a full plate before they start! 

Mollie and Ray are still in grief for Andy's sister Karen who died only two months ago. Michael, Sarah and Jon are so bereft without her (his wife and their mother) their 32nd wedding anniversary would have been next month. We have to help them as best we can at a distance. Andy is himself grieving for his beloved sister, I have lost a kind and lovely sister-in-law and Suzie and Gareth their Auntie Karen. Karen was a truly lovely and special lady and so loved by us all she leaves a very big hole in our lives which cannot be filled. 


Yet still so many dear friends need our consideration at present. Our good friend Shirley died last November from the same malignant Melanoma,  Howard also needed our support,  as he approached his 1st wedding anniversary without her! They had been together for 27 years but only married April 2011. 

Andy's best friend John Jackson ( his friend from Primary school days in fact all his school days)  suffered a severe stroke a month ago and although at last at home is still unable to function properly. He is still very ill. We have friends from Andy's Uni days and he recovered from bowel cancer only to find that there are further tumours in his lungs, not much can be done for him and he is only early 50's. So very hard to accept and  at work we are trying to support a work colleague whose husband died this Tuesday from bowel cancer + leukaemia. 6/9/12

21/5
Well our travel plans seem to be moving along I collect the tickets Friday and we will be on our way at last on June 8th. Maurice Eastman has suggested that he bring Uncle George to the airport; such a lovely idea and such a thoughtful man. We are picking up our hire car from the airport. We are progressing with all the plans but maybe not as fruitfully as we would hope. I do hope uncle George won't opt out when we get there. Yesterday he was talking about visiting other places other than Armour oaks. Oh dear. Then said there is plenty of time to make a decision. He also has asked us to take Tsilli and Dixie to his vet for him as he doesn't feel he can manage it himself. I did say that he may take Tsilli the cat but he feels it isn't fair to move her at such an age. We will have to see when we see her for ourselves.We did feel it may help him to have her with him for even a few weeks. What do you think?

My son is a summer intern working at IBM. He has been told he must have moved out of his room by 10am on Friday 14 Sept. This will be other difficult as we live in Lincolnshire and have to travel to Winchester. Please could you allow us some extra time, it would be much appreciated if we could move his belongings in the early afternoon. 
We could agree to vacate his room by say 4pm Friday 14th. 

We are staying ay Basingstoke inn keepers lodge Thursday night. That is Dad and I as he has scrounged a day off.  


16/06 /12

We drove to Leicester and brought Gareth back to Nottingham. at 7:30pm we all went to Suzie's private view of her final Graduate exhibition, hers was with 7 other Photographers and held at the Nottingham Society of Artists in Friar lane which is just opposite the Castle. We spent until after 9:30 (when it finished) talking to the other photographers several of her school friends came over for the evening, and to her tutors. It was very special; although you would have laughed seeing 'my teddy' there as well. Well she is something broken and mended which has only been kept for sentimental reasons. Suzie's had really big photographs the frames are 50cm square. Andy is trying to get them onto her web site before we leave for Kansas. I'll let you know when they are on. The Tutors and the 'boss's boss'  were all very complimentary, they loved her work and the reasons for it.  On Monday she had a call from the Dept and Suzie was one of the few chosen photographers whose work  the University is taking her to exhibit in London representing Nottingham Trent University. Isn't that fantastic. We are proud to bursting now. 

Andy did have a nice birthday thank you for his card. +. Suzie came by train for the day and brought her Dutch flatmate Max with her. We all had lunch together and Suzie had a haircut and early evening we took them to the station and they went back to Nottingham. 

 We watched lots of the Diamond Jubilee on TV on and off through the weekend. Such a pity it was so cold and wet, Wasn't the Queen wonderful as always she just went on smiling as if it was sunny and warm. Only the occasional grimace.  

Everywhere in Boston is decorated with bunting - inc. our house plus lots of little flags and all around the town has lovely beds of red,white and blue flowers, one is just like a Union flag.  Andy had to work Monday (Bank holiday) he had Tuesday off though we had a quiet day watching TV as we have a busy week ahead, and he is working today and tomorrow as well. 

I did speak to Uncle George yesterday ( Tuesday), he sounded much the same, very forgetful of what day it is etc. After a few goes he grasped that we arrive on this Friday about 5pm their time. Allison will pick him up and bring him to the airport; then drop him back. We'll meet up properly on Saturday morning again after we've had a night of sleep. 
We plan to leave home very early Friday morning midnight to 1am. Take off is 6am Friday. We arrive at 11pm our time 5pm local time. It's a long journey. 

23/06/12

We drove to London on Thursday evening to attend Suzie's private view again, the tutors had chosen a small selection only 40 out of the over 100 graduates. It showed her that her work is individual and respected.  It was at the OldTruman Brewery Gallery in Brick Lane. It should be on their web site eventually. We will let you know. The exhibits are all from this years graduate exhibitions from lots of different Universities. The whole area was buzzing with people lots of stalls providing food etc. outside,  the gallery was very busy on Thursday evening 7pm to 10pm all the time we were there. They continue to exhibit until Monday evening then the University will transport the Photographs back to Nottingham. Brick lane seemed to have been spruced up a lot over the years. Coming into East London We drove past all the new Olympic arenas and venues the buildings were lit and quite impressive they are huge buildings. 
25/06/12

heavy and gusty rain yesterday luckily it only rained whilst driving from Boston to Leicester and then when driving Gareth to Winchester, we also had some on our return journey but while we were carrying his belongings into the flat it was fortunately warm,  sunny and dry. We met  Gareth's other 5 flatmates  as they also moved into the flat yesterday. He is staying at the University of Winchester student accommodation. They were all friendly and pretty excited about the next few weeks. Gareth has a good size bedroom/study with lots of cupboards,  drawers and bookshelves and good en-suite facilities. He has all the bedlinen supplied/ laundered and towels as well which is helpful. On site washing and drying machine facilities are also provided. The six flatmates share a good size well equipped kitchen with two large fridge/freezers and a dining/lounge area.  Unusually they have supplied all the necessary crockery, cutlery, glasses, saucepans etc and other cooking utensils that was good as it saved a lot of transporting of kitchen and cleaning stuff. They are on the 4th floor so pleasant views from the windows and easy to access as there is even a lift. Gareth starts today so this evening we will, web cam and find out how his day has gone.
Gareth was very happy with his room, and we managed to get most of what he wanted from his house into the car. Gareth doesn't travel light and wanted to bring all 3 big screens and his computers so the car was very full. this summer isn’t exactly a holiday this year, but Gareth is tremendously excited about this whole experience, and isn't worried about holidays anyway. He took his own iron, so it seems he plans to be very smart at work with a suit and neat shirts and tie.
Today they will find out to which project they are allocated and their teams, and their tasks within the group.  They are working for IBM and so will have IBM staff around as well. It will be a very interesting day
We hope he will manage a couple of weeks at home before he's back to Leicester in mid September.
Suzie is now back in Nottingham after the London exhibition;  the University will pack up her photographs this evening and transport them back to Nottingham; we do wonder how her work has been received in London?  Suzie will have a couple of weeks in the flat in Nottingham and July 19th is her graduation ceremony at the royal Concert Hall,  then Suzie plans to come home whilst she plans the next steps. It will be lovely to have her home again but they will be busy days for her. Andy and I haven't got any further plans for the summer, we are invited to two weddings one is Lauren who works for Andy in the medicines management and Patient safety aspect of his job. Then in August our friends Bill and Sue ( who we worked with in Great Yarmouth at the James Paget hospital) who now live in Cumbria have their daughter's wedding Elizabeth to Chris a Swiss. Elizabeth completed her Uni studies last year and is Suzie's age they have a son a bit younger than Gareth. We will spend a couple of days there, it will be lovely to see them and celebrate such a lovely day with them all.

A quick note Allison spells her name with a double l so is called ALLISON. 
Also:-  Allison is still writing the Thesis for her Masters degree,  she requires time to concentrate and accomplish this, and whilst we were in Kansas wasn't able to add much to it; we had extremely long days getting to bed after 11pm most days.  Since our visit Andy and I have limited our emails to the important issues and tried not to bother her with anything else. We really should try to be careful not  to intrude further into her time unnecessarily. Please could we allow her time to attend to her studies which she has limited time to finish and hand in. The past few months have seen her spending a lot of her time on matters to do with Uncle George. I agree it is good to be friendly, she is one of the very good friends of Uncle George's. We will have other times in the future to chat with her.

25/06/12

Yes indeed it does as we had so little sleep whilst there, rarely in bed before 11pm and up again before 7am to get Uncle George from his house to breakfast with us at 8:30 to 9am.
I think it is only now that we are allowing ourselves to look closer at the weeks events. It was a very emotional, busy and difficult week, Uncle George was really very brave in all his decisions. He kept telling us that it was so difficult but trusted us to help him. we did have a real moment of panic the day before move when talking to Deborah he said he needed a couple of weeks to decide. I hugged him tightly and quietly explained that we only had another day and that the move had to be the next day, it was so hard for him, we hugged more cried together and he then seemed to just accept what had to take place and was so, so co-operative. We had laughs too as he had kept some car keys hidden in his glasses case- old fox,  we had driven the car way away so he couldn't find it. ( I'll tell the full car story some time! such a laugh really)  It has now gone to a local radio station and for charity ( one of many he actively supports) Allison arranged that and he can even claim back the tax on the small amount they receive for the car. All the furniture and household stuff we just said was going to charity then he was happy for it to go. It only upset him to think of it thrown away so we didn't tell him how much was in the 8ton Dumpster .Amazing and so un-like Dad. 

It was so hard to have Dixie put down; Allison took Uncle George for a drive and Andy held her, I watched. I had kept explaining to Uncle George that it wasn't  as a  convenience because he had to move and couldn't take her ( partially correct though) but that she was really very ill. She had glaucoma, both her eyes were quite white, and we weren't really sure what if anything she could see. She had a large fatty tumour on her left side, although the veterinarian wasn't too worried about it. Her main complaint was her heart problem she had fluid collecting in her lungs and was unable to move about much without being exhausted.  When he came to put her to sleep the vet pointed out her rather purple/blue tongue. He hadn't even treated her for her fleas as he didn't feel she could cope with any treatment, or being messed about with. Her time had certainly come it was cruel to keep her alive longer. The vet was incredibly kind and charged so little as he's yet another very good friend. Ever had hugs from your vet, GP, Bankers etc etc he does all the time.? 
Next day after he had given Tsilli her rabies jab, I asked if she could stay with the clinic until the removers had finished as it was stressful for her( and all we needed was her to peg out!-I did not actually say that ) He kept her and fed her too. no charge at all. Uncle George worried but trusted us that she would move with him and that Andy would pick her up later that day. We had bought her a new bed, litter tray scoop, food etc. to reinforce that.

We do have a larger set of photos which you and Helen will see eventually.....Andy was kind and chose the least graphic to circulate to Mum and Dad esp. . Oh if you had smell-o-vision. And lots had been cleared by the time we arrived. The house outwardly looks fairly OK..until you look further. Bulging walls around the house,lots of cracks at ground level, the roof is in disrepair and really does have squirrels and raccoons in it , despite Larry - a helper of Stretch's  who had replaced and sealed parts as a temp measure. Years ago.

 Inside Larry and two young students slaved,  truly slaved for the 3 days sweeping, and cleaning,  They got $6 an hour for it. We made it up to $100 and they had some of the furniture for themselves too. It smelled a lot less when we left. bathrooms etc looked cleaner and all sinks are now usable. All rooms swept out and so floors reasonably clear. Stretch seemed unfazed and said it would sell prob to a young couple would repair it. They don't have the same way of selling as here so no looking for 3 realtors.  The Realtor charges 6% and the  buyers agent takes 3% Stretch will do it for free though as he has a Real estate license. They are also looking into insurance claims as they feel that storms may have caused some of the damage they felt a claim to be made to replace the whole roof, even as late as this.  We go with one realtor and they sell it as I understand it.  We didn't feel that it is a big priority now and may well be complicated. see below for more.... Stretch is going to move the rest of the boxes of belongings which are in the house lots of papers etc to store at Armour Oaks. 

Apologies Clare about Sunday, yesterday We did get Gareth there OK as per previous email. Andy has work today anyway. I hadn't been sure I would make the journey, But I was again determined not to miss out seeing Gareth to Winchester he is such an excited young man today. We will web cam tonight to find out how today went for him.

I have a bit of a problem and have had this since early April!  NOT a word to Mum or Dad please. I am only coming clean now as it just isn't going away.

Early April I began to notice that I had back pain again not too bad though. Then I developed a numb left leg and foot. Numb but incredibly painful. I was already taking lots of co-codamol 30/500, Ibuprofen 400mg qds. I went to the GP and my Rheumatologist and between them they arranged lots of tests, blood, an MRI, (an ultrasound of my hands as they are a problem too but unrelated) and nerve/muscle conduction electromyography tests at Lincoln County hosp which Andy took me too on the 19th ( no results yet)  In between they upped my pain relief so I would manage the US plane journey I just insisted I was going.  I had gabapentin tds added in. I feel I had no choice about travelling, I had made up my mind to cope. I had to and did manage as you now know. Since our return I suppose I haven't had so much to occupy myself and the pain and discomfort is just not improving in fact is worse, I got some fentanyl patches to use last Thursday. I am trying to get some physio as the MRI found a disc is bulging ( got results on 29th) so that explained the pain and numbness. They don't want to remove the disc for now, thankfully.
So here I am off sick and that is why I haven't been very communicative since 16th June and why we could not meet up yesterday I know Helen is away. I am so sorry as  I really wanted to talk to you two about all that has taken place with \Uncle George etc. Is would be easier than lengthy emails. 

Despite all our concerns about what was happening in Shawnee Andy and I do feel that it is mostly sound and ok. Allison is back as POA and Steve is visiting in August and will terminate his responsibility then. Kristen is investigating  getting a ' voluntary petition for guardianship and conservator ship' so that Allison with Kristen's help for POA. that acts for the medical POA and for general POA. Uncle George has a living will and did request about DNR. ( Oh such awful conversations to have with anyone you love) and we discussed funeral plans too he made his very simple requests for that too, no mentions of Cyprus at all he said just scatter ashes as we wish, mixed with those of Nana.  Allison still holds firm to the promises she made years ago. Andy and I said we completely release her of her promises and when the time comes will support her in her decisions. She is taking Nana's ashes with her. I wasn't truly happy with that as she is our Nana. But she has POA and has the decision it seems. 

There are lots of details about what is where and who has keys etc.

Hopefully the on-line banking will work eventually- Thank you Helen for all your work on that Andy has been answering for me..as you realise.
We have set up with the banks help two sets of cover for Uncle George's accounts. $ 25,000 which comes free from the bank and another for $250,000 which in effect gives cover on all his credit cards and cheque books etc in case monies are given away/ or just lost so his money can't just disappear. it cost something like $78 which is amazing.
The bank suggest a Trust is set up ? formed she is finding out if it can still be done using the Courts. 
His Blue Cross supplemental health insurance is apparently over the top for cover and so his monthly payment is very high so Kristen is looking at reducing the amount he pays to that. 
Clare's details have been added at Commerce bank  for the Money maker a/c which now holds the bulk of his savings. we gave your full name and DOB.
We will have to sign the sale docs. and it may require a visit to finish that. Andy and I  were given freely by Uncle George money to cover a further trip - soonish which I do hope will be more of taking him our for day trips etc and visiting. as well as finalising anything which needs attention. We may have to get a notary/ solicitor or a visit to the US Embassy to witness our signatures they will let us know all that in time. Again we didn't feel that was a priority. It seems that squatting is unheard of thereabouts.
I suppose they just shoot the trespassers- sorry it must be the meds. so an empty house isn't a problem although I presume that the roof falling in wouldn't help matters.

I don't know if Kristen or her practice will take payment for their services. Yes they are all firm friends now and felt hurt that we wanted them paid for their work. It seems Kristen does a lot of work for children and does that gratis too.
Stretch and Paul and Allison are as always amazing friends but really much more than just friends to Uncle George. Stretch and the others will tackle almost anything for him and have already done so. We have learned from all these friends and others too that Uncle George is truly a very caring and much loved man. He has done a lot of charity work. He has helped all these people himself,  giving advice and help which has helped so many people, so many people said they love him and that he is so dear to them.  A really very humbling experience for Andy and I, far from as Dad sees him 'as a loner' he is absolutely surrounded by amazing friends and people. You absolutely cannot go out into Shawnee or Missouri or Kansas or Kansas City without being stopped by people constantly who recognise or know him or are true friends and we had to stop to chat and chat in so many languages ( made us feel very un educated) 
I can't at the moment think of other things of importance to pass on to you. If you feel Mark should be privy to all this do pass it on. Please NOT to MUM or Dad. Please don't tell Mum either. She doesn't need any more worry. I am OK and being looked after well.

The Hi Vee bus( the toy one which is about 30cm was left on the mantle piece in the lounge  we hoped it would get to Armour Oaks with some other things we put aside in a box for his room.

On 21/06/12 18:23, Clare Detsios wrote:

I do hope you're getting back into the rhythm of things over here. I know it takes at least a week to start feeling yourself again after such a trip. I have read all the emails and looked at all the photos you kindly sent. I am amazed at what you have achieved and all of George's friends and family have been so kind and careful in this difficult time, it is a truly good thing that you and Andy have done and I cannot thank you enough. I felt terribly anxious about George's future but in such a short space of time you have achieved so much. I gingerly picked my way through the Parkhill Drive photos but I think it looks OK now it's been cleaned out although I know there's a lot to be done to make it into a home again.

I did speak with Helen and I wondered whether we could coordinate a get together when you bring Gareth down to Winchester, would you like to stay here overnight before heading back, I will have two spare bedrooms in July when Ellie and Jo will be away. However I am off again to France for the Tour de France holiday leaving on 6th July returning on 22nd July, does that fit at all with your plans? Helen and family would obviously join us and maybe we could have Mum and Dad round for part of the get together but I think it would be a good idea for you me and Helen to sit down and just discuss George.

If not then maybe when you collect Gareth or maybe you were planning for him to get the train home?

06/07/12

We are so delighted to tell you that Suzie has gained a 2.1  B.A. Honours degree in Photography from Nottingham Trent University.

Andy and I and of course Gareth are so very proud of all Suzie's achievements and are delighted with her results, Suzie has worked very hard for the past three years and deserves her degree.

On the morning of 20th July Andy and I will accompany her to The Royal Concert Hall in Nottingham where we will see her receive her Degree certificate.

From 15th July Suzie will leave her flat at the University and return home while she looks for the next step.

12/07/12

My leg/foot are still quite numb and giving me such a lot of pain, so no change there. 

I have now had 3 sessions of Physio at Pilgrim 2nd, 4th and yesterday 11th July. I will have more on the 17th and 23rd July. They hope the physio will help relieve the pressure on the sciatic nerve and so sort the numbness and pain. 
I saw my GP again on Monday he has increased my gabapentin to 300mg TDS which I am increasing up to over a few days. I am still using the fentanyl patches every 3 days, co-codamol lots, and ibuprofen 400mg QDS. 
I hope the gabapentin increase will lessen the nerve pains. 

 My GP has referred me to the pain clinic at Pilgrim to get an epidural and maybe some steroid inj's. 

25/07/12

Suzie's graduation Thursday/ Friday 20th in Nottingham. It went so very well we all had a wonderful day. The weather was very unkind as we had torrential rain as we left Boston, as we then arrived in Nottingham, we got wet going to dinner and then got wet all morning on Friday. Would you believe after having to take all her photos indoors before the ceremony at 11am and then afterwards at the reception  the rain stopped as we were to take back her gown, hood and hat so we stayed for longer and took some photos outside around 2pm. I will let you know when her photos are up on the website. I think Suzie's put lots on Facebook as well. Also if you use that you will know that she has broken up with her boyfriend Zack. It was entirely her decision as she no longer felt the same it was still a very painful and distressing time for her and we have had to be here for her. Even so they have parted very amicably. Andy and I have needed to be here for her and so many things have slipped a little for a few days.  

Before she starts the job hunting next stage, Suzie is planning a holiday trip to the Netherlands she is going to stay with Max  (who is from Netherlands and was one of her Nottingham flatmates) and his family for a couple of weeks. Max graduated this year as well and had been studying Ancient History at the University of Nottingham, he is going to study next at the University of Leiden in Netherlands for a Masters Degree from September 12. 

Many apologies, but apart from the above I have also needed to concentrate on me. I've had several appointments this week, GP for yet another sick cert for another month ( had 2 months already) which is upsetting. My doses of various pain relief have increased, it is getting a bit easier but the numb leg/foot problem is the same. I am having weekly Physio and go to the Pain Clinic next week as an epidural may help the pain more. Still I am waiting to see someone about actually getting help for the sciatic/ spine problems. T

30/07/12

Not nice weather today we've had a thunderstorm which was in fact a hailstorm too. Amazing rain it was quite deafening against the doors and windows. But now we have sun and blue skies with fluffy clouds.
We have been enjoying some of the Olympics, and we did enjoy the opening show/ceremony. 

19/9

Apologies I have spent several mornings phoning GP surgery to get an appointment, for a further certificate. In the end GP can't see me until Friday, they are getting a certificate done for Thursday morning, so I will arrange for it get to you ASAP.

I have spoken again to the pain clinic nurse this morning after many phone calls and now increased my Gabapentin to 700mg tds. They have also suggested Butrans patches to help the pain. They are also trying to find me a slot with the pain Consultant instead of a nurse I hope that will be soon.

I continue with the Hydrotherapy sessions each week, I have 2 more then I see the Physio again to see what he suggests next. Maybe a further 6 sessions.

I had my appointment with Occupational Health Sue Foster Tue 11th . Sue said she would try to hurry up the process at Kings Lynn with the spinal surgery unit. So I know what they plan or don't plan for me.

27/9

A coincidence as just before Paul sent this lovely photo, I had tried to speak to Uncle George. I phoned but he was at an activity for the next 15 mins, so I called back. When I did the receptionist had asked him to wait for my call in the lounge. It was lovely to speak to him and he sounded clear and easily heard what I wad saying.He asked after all the family I passed on all I know about everyone. He then sent love to everyone.  I asked if he was enjoying the activities and he said they were good and agreed that they kept him busy. He said that yesterday was sunny and good weather, and that he felt well. I said Paul had sent a lovely photo for us and it was good to see him looking well and happy. He is sitting on a cushion cover I had made in patchwork, back in the 70s. Andy then arrived home and they chatted together for a while as well.
He always loves to chat with Andy.

1/10

it was confirmed that Ray did have a heart attack on the Saturday around 3am.  Andy phoned for an ambulance as Mollie had called us to say Ray was unwell. A paramedic arrived quickly and came up to their room then an ambulance with driver plus two paramedics. They were very kindly and Ray was taken to the ambulance with Mollie whilst they monitored him for a while then he wad taken to Chesterfield Royal Hospital. They kept him in and he was monitored for a few days, and saw the cardiac doctors there. Mollie returned with Michael and Sarah; Then last Thursday he was brought home by ambulance. He is feeling better but will be seen again at Frimley Park hospital. He is to rest completely. We had been in Sheffield, as Ray had arranged for the family (he and Mollie, Andy and I,  Suzie, Michael, and Sarah to get together with his sister-in-law and her son's family. We did meet them, but the weekend wasn't as planned, never mind it will happen another day.
Dad please don't phone them as this has been a trying time for them both. Andy and I will make a brief visit when Andy's work permits.

15/10
 I phoned Grace gardens last Friday, the receptionist went and found him I had such a lovely chat. It must have been a good day. He recognised me and my voice which was so lovely.
We chatted about the activity he'd just done, he'd been watching movies I asked if it was a comedy he laughed but I'm not sure if he remembered. No prob really.
I said I was sending two warmer long sleeved winter shirts, and a quilted hat with ear flaps for when he has snow and ice,storms. They are in 2 packages. I asked if any other clothes had come, he said some are on their way to him; good he remembered that. Maybe as we keep talking about it.
Are they getting boots and a warm coat, do you know?
It was lovely to speak to him on a good day. He asked about Andy and Suzie and Gareth, although he said he couldn't remember what their studies were in.
We laughed and talked on for 10mins plus then he seemed quieter so I said was he ready for Lunch he took the opportunity today he had to go to eat. 
Maybe 10 mins is enough for him?
I said I would call again this week.
Hope all the parcels arrive, are you tracking them?
Next is have you heard from Mark recently? I last text him and got a reply on 3rd October, since then nothing!

23/10/12

Andy Suzie and I went down to Farnborough last Saturday we had a detour to Leicester to leave some items which Gareth forgot at home and his new winter coat and some slippers ( well the 20 year old equiv of them).
We arrived at Andy's parents home in time for late lunch and we spent a lovely afternoon with them. Andy had a few jobs to do for them. We then had a meal at the Harvester to stop Mollie from cooking dinner, she's had a troubled few weeks. We then sat and chatted as Sarah and Jon ( Karen and Michael's youngsters) had come for dinner too.
We all went to bed to be woken by Mollie at 3am saying Ray was feeling very unwell. He'd had a nose bleed and seemed to be having another heart episode. Andy phoned for the paramedics who must have been lurking nearby as before Mollie could go and put a light on downstairs and open the front door they had arrived. They were very thoughtful and kind to them;  Mollie was very upset and Ray was too.
They got him hooked up to all the devices and took him to Frimley Park Hosp nearby. He spent all day in the re-suss unit and went to the CCU Monday am. where he is now. He's had an angiogram and is quite calm about it all. 
We spoke last night. All this was particularly upsetting for them as it was Mollie's birthday on Monday which she had been feeling worried about as it's the first since Karen died. Karen shared the same birthday as Suzie so these next few weeks were going to be hard anyway, without any extra pain. We visited Ray in the A and E  before we left Farnborough as we had to come home as Andy needed to be at work on Monday. If you wanted to send a Get well card best to send it to Mollie and she’d take it in.
Some better news is that Suzie has a job at Boston Boots. It is just a temporary post over Christmas time but will give her some income and looks good on a C.V. 
Suzie has an induction day on the 29th and then flies to Amsterdam to spend until the 6th in Leiden with Max, she will start at Boots on the 7th Nov.
She is still on the books at various other places for the jobs she really prefers. We will see jobs are not at all easy these days. Gareth was well and is very busy. When we went on Saturday he was preparing work for the University of Leicester Computer Society, he was voted the Comp. Soc. President last year so is very keen to have it all working smoothly. Since his summer with IBM he has been approached by several firms all wanting him to work for them after he completes his degree next June. He's had a further offer from IBM for a new facility and an offer from the Bank of England and another big firm. 

19/11

Andy's family are not doing Christmas at all Mollie just can't face it and with Ray being so unwell it's become even more difficult.  (Mollie and Ray have given Andy, Suzie, Gareth and I a cheque) We will go down at some time after Christmas. Andy's working Christmas anyway.
Ray is very poorly so we'll be there again for a weekend v. soon. He has heart failure he's got an oxygen concentrator but is still breathless even on sitting. They can't do a valve replacement but may try some stents. His heart is so weak.
We really do want to get to Mum and Dad but it's impossible to combine. I can't manage any further travelling beyond the 3 hours to Farnborough. Oh dear what a load of old crocs.   ;)
About pressies I had thought I would do my usual shop voucher/cards for the neices & nephew, with something for you and Clare. And of course Mum and Dad. 
Any ideas are very welcome. It is still difficult for me as I cannot drive because of the pain and the side effects of the pain meds and the patch. I'm still waiting to see the spinal unit at Queens Med centre at Nottingham. We don't have a unit in Lincolnshire.
Suzie is working at Boots Boston until into the New Year she hopes they might give her hours after that. She had 1 1/2 days paid training so she is hopeful. She is very good and takes me out its so annoying to be so dependent.

7/12

Helen is rather busy this weekend as Charlotte and Andy are moving to a new home. (Helen's daughter and son-in-law) Helen and James and Andy are all probably trying to do it all. My parents are visiting as well.
Nice to hear that you will be able to visit Uncle George. I phone him when I can, he seems very muddled at times.  He still recognizes my voice for which I am so very grateful. 
I feel worried that he's putting on so much weight although its good that he is eating well. Maybe they should watch his food intake a little.
Good to hear from you. I managed to get addresses for the Parkhill  neighbours, Karen &(Chuck)from next door emailed me, she hoped to visit George this weekend. It seems the house is looking good now. I asked her to let us have a picture for old times sake.
I still haven't an address for Paul I may have to do an e-card. 

8/12

At my meeting with Dr Ian Aston last week I agreed to advise him when I received my referral to the spinal unit at QMC Nottingham.
I have received an appointment letter but do not have a contact or email address for Dr Aston.
I attach copies of a letter to him from me and a scan of my QMC Nottingham Spinal clinic appointment letter.

I would be very grateful if you could forward these to Dr Aston ASAP as my appointment is next Wednesday 12th December. 
He was hoping to contact the consultant prior to my attending QMC.

14/12/12

A bit of an update last Friday night I stretched for my handbag and felt a sharp pain in my chest. It was extremely painful over the weekend any movement was difficult and I didn't leave the house. I spent the days doing very little and then Tuesday night I tried to lie down in bed it had been very painful when I laid down but Tuesday it was impossible the pain was so sharp. 

Andy phoned 111 and a paramedic came. He was in a car so not able to transport me so Andy drove me to Pilgrim A & E. They were excellent and I was seen immediately. They were convinced I had a Pulmonary embolism I was sure not, as I had moved which caused the pain it didn't start on its own. I had lots of blood tests, including one Mum had years ago to measure blood gases from a wrist artery. Yes it was ouch! and he had 3 goes to get a decent sample. I have a really black set of wrists. 
They weren't at all sure what was wrong so gave me extra pain meds and admitted me into CDU. I had an ECG and an X-ray they decided that I had indeed fractured a rib(s). I will have to arrange with my GP to have a DEXA scan some time to look into that.
I spent until lunchtime Wednesday on the ward but they let me go so I could get to Nottingham Queens Medical centre for my spinal appointment. at 4:30. They doubled my buprenorphine patches and gave me doses of Oramorph in addition to the Gabapentin and ibuprofen I was taking and also insisted I also have paracetamol, so I could manage the car journey. 
I was rather out of it during our trip, somehow Andy got me there and into the Spinal surgery assessment clinic there I saw the very kind consultant Spinal surgeon who realised that I wasn't able to demonstrate my movements much but just asked me how I move and where pain is and where its numb etc he is organising another MRI scan- the Nottingham QMC MRI scanner is much better ( more sensitive)  than at Pilgrim - his words. No doubt they can afford a newer and better one. 



28/12

Good morning Caroline.
Thank you we had a nice Christmas Day together, on and off , as Andy was on-call and had too many calls. Our meal had some long gaps to allow for them and trips into Pilgrim. Not a peaceful one for Andy. Luckily my other two cooks carried on.
I hope you had a pleasant Christmas with your family.
Gareth drove me to Asda yesterday and we met Eileen shopping it seems like so long since we met it was a moment to catch up. 

I haven't had an appt for the new MRI scan at QMC as yet.  As yet only the follow-up appt with the spinal unit surgeon to review the MRI.  

I have an appointment at 9am with the pain management clinic consultant on Day case ward on 9th Jan for further spinal facet injections and another spinal root block. I hope this will help the pain and numbness. 
I also see my GP on the 15 Jan for a review.
I see the Consultant rheumatologist on the 22 Jan.

31/12/12
Charlotte and Andy had their 20 week scan and they have just let me know that we have a little girl on the way...

Oh just think of all those pretty Monsoon dresses I can get in Street!!

13/01/13
Nan is being very brave and Grandad would be so proud of how she is managing.  This is very hard, even things like the fridge is full of the foods he asked for.  Tomorrow we have to get the death certificates and deal with all the financial details and arrangements as much as we are able to make it easier for Nan. There have been several visitors and cards and  flowers already. We will tell you about the arrangements ASAP when we know about the funeral etc. The bit after is going to be at the British Legion in Farnborough
Nan is having their standard to cover the coffin. With White roses for Yorkshire. Grandad' wishes. 
I do hope tomorrow you will not worry about anything just work as usual at your exam,  Grandad was always so proud of your achievements. Nan sends her love and good luck to you. 

14/01/13
I am still waiting for the MRI scan appointment although I have a follow up with the Consultant at the Spinal unit at QMC Nottingham on 6th February.
Last Wednesday I spent the morning on the Day case ward and had repeat spinal facet injections and a repeat nerve root block injection. They were as unpleasant and painful as previously as yet I am waiting for those to settle down and then hopefully for some improvement. 
Last Friday evening Andy's Dad passed away in hospital we are now in Farnborough and will stay with his Mum until we have helped her with arrangements.  I was due to see my GP tomorrow to arrange a new sick certificate for Thursday. I will have to contact him about that.

15/01The really beautiful  bunch of white roses just arrived ( many apologies it was before lunch I started this much earlier)
Mollie was especially moved as Ray was a true Yorkshire Man so always White roses of Yorkshire. Mollie wanted to phone to thank you but felt she couldn't manage to speak to you. She is being very brave but has moments which are so difficult. 
We arranged for a 4' arrangement of white roses from all the older family and a smaller round of  roses from the four Grandchildren.  Ray will have a Union flag, and the British Legion will say the Exhortation with their Standard bearer we have chosen favourite music and two hymns. 
Sorry many hours later Andy and I have spent hours trying to collect Ray's death certificate from the hospital now we can't get an appointment at the Registrars until Thursday. ...so many calls.  We will call tomorrow 8am in case of a cancellation.
When we have registered and got the official certificate then we can begin to tackle all the rest.
I attach a photo of the flowers so that you can see how lovely they are, Mollie has them so she  can sit and look at them.
I thank you so much as well.

23/01/13

Mollie only has Andy and I to help in her personal affairs and there is such a lot to arrange. So many agencies and companies to advise. Their next two holidays I have managed to cancel and obtain full refunds including their deposits.
We are managing but losing two members of your close family in less than 10 months is very hard for everyone. Gareth has had three of his final exams last week- thankfully the University do take the bereavement into account;  it has been difficult for him alone in Leicester. He has been good and has carried on. Andy and I will go down to Farnborough on Saturday morning and Suzie is driving my car and will take Max to Birmingham airport (he has been with us this week) and they will collect Gareth from Leicester on the way to Birmingham. Then Suzie and Gareth will drive to Farnborough for Saturday pm as will need both cars to move ourselves about. Ray's two nephews and sister-in-law will come down from Sheffield. So sad as it was only September when we all met there to visit the family. We spent a long weekend and that was when Ray had the first heart attack and had to stay in Chesterfield hospital for two weeks. 
I just pray that we have better weather for the weekend and especially on Monday for Ray's funeral. I still cannot really believe that he has gone, he was such a perfect gentleman so polite, generous and kind. Andy and I will stay with Mollie in Farnborough for the weekend and Monday and Tuesday possibly longer if we are needed. Suzie and Gareth will have to get back to their work on Tuesday. 
Tomorrow I go to Queens Medical centre in Nottingham to have another MRI scan of my lumbar back, then I see the spinal surgeon to discuss their findings on the 6th Feb.

28/01

I only saw your email just now.  We came back to the house from Ray's funeral a short while ago
( it was at 10am) and then food and refreshments at the British Legion in Farnborough. The Crematorium was completely full it seated 80 but 40 or more had to stand for the service.  For the eats we had made a photo album of about 80 photos all the family favourites of Ray  which everyone looked at and commented on to us. The service booklet had a lovely photo of Ray which either Suzie or Andy took in Boston a few years ago we had a large one of it framed to be on the table with the album. For the service He had a Union flag such beautiful flowers. The top man at the Legion branch said the Exhortation they were all very proper in their uniforms as the standard was lowered, as  Mollie and Ray have been members of the British Legion for decades
It was a really wonderful service, a very kind loving Minster from Cove.  Ray would have loved to be there, lots of people who worked with him at Boots Aldershot, people who served with him as he was a JP, school governor, friends from his bowls club, and table tennis and fishing. Lots of Friends they' ve  been on holiday with. Mollie  has been here in Cove all her life. Nearly all the  Coggin family from Sheffield came and almost all the rest of the family, not easy on a Monday. Andy just managed to say such a lovely tribute to his Dad. It was very hard for him. Sorry Helen I didn't intend to write for so long
Suzie and Gareth have just left to go back in my car Gareth for Uni tomorrow and Suzie is in at 8:30 for work. Andy and I will go home tomorrow night and probably return at the weekend. The next few weeks will be difficult for Mollie. It was such a shock. 


Yes Andy and I have a pile of firms etc who will need to readdress their letters, closing a/c's.
Luckily Hampshire have a 'one stop system' at the Registrar; one can cancel lots of things like driving license, state pension, council tax, library card, disabled parking permit, ones NHI number, even his passport -she cut the corner and returned & gave back all photos on cards the lady was really very sensitive. That was a difficult visit as we had to go to Leatherhead as there were no appts anywhere else in Surrey as Frimley Park is in Surrey. One has to register within 5 days and the hospital did not issue their certificate until the Thursday am. We had a very busy and rushed week.
Mollie thankfully has an amazing circle of close friends, cousins, and other family who all live in Cove and Farnborough. They have all visited and phoned so many times and their support has helped us all. Ray was a real gentleman a very kind, generous and thoughtful Dad, father-in-law and Grandad. We all feel his passing terribly Mollie is being very brave. Despite this she is finding her days are very difficult it was such a shock as she had gone to the hospital in order to bring him home. Her fridge was full of all the things he had asked for, all his favourite foods and treats. It is very hard to accept what has happened. 
Again Mum she was so very touched by your really beautiful bouquet of white roses they were really lovely. Ray was a Yorkshire man and very proud of that so white roses were so apt. She wanted to phone you immediately when they arrived but said she wouldn't manage to speak to you. 
We will probably visit again this weekend, with lots of letters and forms to sign.

Suzie is one of the bright and happy things at present Boots kept her on and she is now on the Pharmacy counter, she has a special task to sign patients to the prescription collection and dispensing service which Boots operates. She is doing well with around 14 per week...which they are happy with. Suzie takes in prescriptions and puts some of the items ready. She is kept really busy all day working 8:30 to 5:30 Tuesday to Saturday inc. so full time which is wonderful. Suzie is of course still pursuing a career within photography as well. But for now is being paid well they are training her, she has a smart uniform ( white top with blue trims and blue trousers) and her days are busy.

6/02

Queens Medical Centre today and was seen by the Spinal consultant who plans to give me a further spinal nerve root block. He feels I have not had the nerve root block given to the exact spot that I require it as I should have had much more pain relief by now. If this further injection gives me a good nerve block I should be able to reduce my pain medication and start a phased return to work program.
I will have this procedure as a day patient at Nottingham. I have been allocated an appointment for 11 March. I will then see him again after about 3 months again at Nottingham.
I have also been sent an appointment to see the Occupational Therapist at Piilgrim on 28 March. 

09/02

I called and they spent some time searching.  It seemed he was in his own rooms. He said he was watching the TV. He said he had,  had a kitty cat  on his lap and a 'doggy' by his feet.  Don't know if there was a dog, but that thought made him happy.  Tsilli is okay, well,  after I asked, he said that he thought she was ok. I didn't ask about the dog,  it could belong to someone else ie not Dixie. He was coughing now and then but otherwise sounded like himself. He thought the weather was a lovely sunny day,  in reality 2C but I don't think he's been out at all. The receptionist said that she thought he was on the 'up' again,  but not the old George yet ! Reality is I was delighted that he sounded so good, his status had sounded really bad. I don't really know if he truly recognised my voice, I kinda just pretended he did. He didn't mention any names,  just asked  generally about 'everyone at home'.  I said all our names he sent his love to us all. I said I would send his love to Jack. Although when he answered the phone initially he did speak in Greek asking me how I am. Maybe he remembered that phone call with Dad. 

11/02

Andy and I are home again, got back yesterday evening. Mollie is being so very brave,  and is kinda managing, though  we feel if we aren't there she isn't eating. The 28th is Karen's first anniversary so she is having a very hard time. This is so difficult for Andy too. We did get much more done for her paper work wise. 
Thank you for mentioning Mum. I haven't liked to as I didn't know what anyone knew. Do you know when she has this contrast scan? Then she will know whether she's had this problem for many years and they'll just 'watch and wait' or if treatment is needed. (Such a terrible worry for her) I do hope she badgers them for a cancellation if possible and gets this done speedily. Just she said she doesn't want to discuss this further.  Hope between all this you are getting settled in rented home. 
I go to Nottingham on the 11 March to have yet more spinal nerve root block injections the Consultant there thinks the Consultant at Pilgrim isn't getting the correct place,  After all this time :-(  
Probably won't have a job still by then and its not my fault.  Oh well
Hope you get through to Uncle George,  be patient as it takes him a while to walk. He must not rush with his, heart failure. 

21/2 We are still staying with Mollie today. Andy is wading his way through tax forms etc
We do plan to go back to Boston tomorrow. 
Are you at home sometime tomorrow?  It would be nice if we could come to Rosehill  for a while on our way back home
If you are at home tomorrow;
I will firm up on times a bit later today

23/02 Dear Mum and Dad.  It was so good to spend time with you yesterday. Thank you for having us. We arrived back home about 12:15
We had a good  journey only hitting the snow after Peterborough
But it was dry stuff in tiny pieces blowing about and it didn't settle at all. We have had the same snow on and off all day. 
Suzie finished work early today 2:45 as she had done a couple of hours extra so she could come home briefly to change clothes.
Then we took her to Boston station now she is in London celebrating Harriet's birthday. Back tomorrow evening in time for work again on Monday morning. 
I spoke to Gareth he sends his love, he's working hard. He was pleased to hear that we came over yesterday. 

08/03

Suzie brought home some delightful news, Boots has given her a permanent contract, which is comforting for her they have  also offered her training to be pn the medical counter. They have alsp suggested that she embark on Dispenser training.  Suzie is treating this seriously she still intends to  look for something more like photography in advertising

12 March Gareth's 21st he is in Leicester....

12/03

Gareth is at Leicester  University today. He is very busy with his final project he is writing a language to translate one computer language to another. He has lots of tutor and mentor reviews as well.  The end of this term is the 23rd March when we'll collect him on the Saturday. Then we will celebrate his 21st birthday properly with him. It seems awful not to be with him on this really special and significant day. As it happens I am laid up in bed all day and they're at work ( Suzie and Andy) anyway. Andy drove me to Queens Medical Centre in Nottingham yesterday for the spinal nerve root block at 2pm it was as painful as ever it took about 3/4 hour and I had to stay lying down for a couple of hours.  Then I had to push myself to sit and move so they'd  let me go home. Andy got me to the car with a wheelchair
It was so cold and snowy. I will have a very quiet day, just hoping it will make a difference eventually. Just now my left leg and hip is completely, completely numb but painful and aching. I need this to work otherwise I lose my job. But more than that I need to be able to live properly again. 
I will keep Gareth's present for when he's back.  Thank you again. Hope you are all okay with this snowy and cold weather it was -4C plus and snowing, coming home luckily Andy's new car has heated front seats which helped keep me warm. Gareth's 21st birthday will be a very quiet day. Gareth is at Leicester University today and busy with his final project and tutor and mentor reviews this week. His term finishes on the 22nd so we'll bring him home then and celebrate his 21st birthday properly. 
Yesterday Andy  drove me to Queens Medical centre in Nottingham and the spinal surgeon give me the spinal nerve root block It was as awfully painful as ever and took 3/4 hour then I had to stay still and  lying down for a couple of hours,  I really had to push myself to sit and move so they'd allow me to travel home fpr two hours of car drive. Andy got me a wheelchair to get me from the x-ray dept. and along several long corridors and to the car park. The journey home was uncomfortable,  cold -4C and snowy. Luckily Andy's new car has heated front seats which helped keep me warm on the way home. Now the whole of my left foot, leg and hip are completely numb but it is still very painful. I do hope it will eventually allow me to be able to get back to work. 
Gareth is very busy with his final project so can't get home today
I feel very sad that we won't see him on such a significant day. 
He has tutor and mentor reviews due for his work and the end of the term is the 23rd March when we'll collect him from Leicester University then we will have a proper celebration for him. 

29 March Easter

this morning we've had little snow flurries. We are hoping they'll go away. Andy is still working it was meant to be until 11:30 amd its already 1:20. Suzie is working all day today,  Saturday, and Monday.  Gareth will drive them both to Farnborough after she finishes at 5 : 30 on Saturday and they'll drive back to Boston on Sunday pm . Andy and I will drive back on Monday early afternoon as he is at work on Tuesday. We hope you enjoy pleasant weather for the Easter weekend

29/03

Andy and I go to Farnborough tomorrow morning (Saturday) and will stay until Monday. We will drive back to Boston on Monday afternoon as Andy is at work on Tuesday. 
Gareth will drive down with Suzie to Farnborough,  when she finishes work tomorrow afternoon (Saturday) which will be after 5:30. Suzie is working on Monday and Gareth has his dissertation so they will drive back to Boston on Easter Sunday afternoon. 

3rd April 13 

Very many congratulations on your Engagement to Bryan from us all. How exciting   : - )
We are all delighted for you both. I am sorry we cannot join you for your Engagement party, on two counts :- Gareth has to be back to the University of Leicester on Saturday ready for his final term of final lectures and studies and his final exams project, Viva and his dissertation too. He will have a very busy term indeed. We will have to drive Gareth with his belongings on Saturday then get shopping in to fill his fridge and cupboards. 
Secondly all my fault I am finding travelling difficult at present

7/4

As you know Mum has been ill for the past 4 days, thank goodness she is much better now and has made a gradual improvement. It was a UTI/ gastroenteritis and she felt very unwell on Thursday evening when Dad rang me in a panic and I spoke to Mum and immediately went round to see her.
She was feeling dreadful, retching and weak. Dad did not know what to do, he was unaware of how to contact a GP out of hours and wanted to call an ambulance.

I decided to approach the problem as if I was a visiting GP, I decided there was no point in calling the OOH GP- although treating your own family is not advised by the GMC. I set out into town and obtained a prescription for her with 5 minutes to closing time! Mum needed help to get upstairs , get into bed, get undressed and I phoned her early the next morning, went back that afternoon and have seen her daily. She was of course very grateful and very sweet and I would do it for her again. However i realised just how difficult things could be if she remained unwell for any length of time: Dad is pretty useless on his own and I do not think he is safe to drive. Mum takes a uncharacteristically blase approach to him driving and I really wish he wouldn't, I fear he will have an accident. Helen I'm not sure if James can help here? Apparently someone told him off about his parking, that he was causing an obstruction!! So I just wanted you both to know how things have been at Rosehill. I saw Mum today and she has been taking Dioralyte and antibiotics for her UTI and is much better, quite cheerful but sorry to have missed Holly's special party. I must say I have found the whole experience draining and rather dread it happening again,  but Mum knows she shouldn't wait so long before phoning me, I think she has learned a lesson. Mum is chasing her appointment for follow up after her most recent brain scan, I still intend to accompany her.

10/4 

I have just spoken to Mum and Dad and arranged that Andy, I and Suzie will visit them on Saturday.  I have also spoken with Helen and she feels that will be okay. I was worried that it would be too much for Mum.  I'll book accommodation for the 3 of us locally for Saturday/Sunday night.  We are in Farnborough on the 20th and then Andy is working. Suzie doesn't have many Saturdays off. So we don't have many other options.
If you are at home it would be lovely to see you  as well :-)

2/5

I met with Dr Coggins this morning and explained where I am. What I can do and the things which still cause me such problems. Still all very hard to accept after such a long time.
It probably wasn't too helpful for her as I don't see the Spinal Consultant surgeon until next week ( as I had already explained to Teresa in Occ Health but they insisted that I take up an appointment today)
She says she will write to us both quickly with her report.

I was expected at Occ health at 10am Thursday 2 May. Three days time!! I said I didn't know anything about an appointment. I haven't had either a letter or email.  She then said yes she thought that no-one had let me know! (What a strange conversation.) I said I would have to see if anyone could get me to Pilgrim on Thursday at 10am  and that it was very short notice. She said that it had all been arranged with Sister K. Lishman in Out patients that I go there and then she would be taken me to an office to see Dr M. Coggin the new OH Doctor.
I explained that I am not very well at present.....long story I had to undergo a Gastroscopy and Colonoscopy last Friday afternoon at Pilgrim by Dr Armstrong. Because of problems from the pain meds I am taking. As a consequence I don't feel too good. Also I said that I next see the Spinal surgeon for a follow up from the spinal nerve block I had in March,

2 May

Great-Grandma and Great-Grandpa
Suzie just showed us a picture posted on-line of a very pretty Imogen. Just under 7lbs Only as I said to Helen as one would expect from her Mum and Grandma and I will add her Great-Grandma too. :-)
What a wonderful day for them all.

His Graduation ceremony is on Thursday 11th July 2013.Gareth's graduation ceremony is on Thursday 11th of July. This will be at  the University of Leicester.  We will all be going Gareth is getting tickets for Andy, Suzie and I to attend. An exciting and busy week and weekend for us. 
This week he has his final exams and a 'viva ' Project and his dissertation are all handed in

Then we will be busy with moving him out from his shared house in Leicester Arrrrrh bringing all his stuff home. Then we'll need to help him find a flat to rent near to Cambridge for a while, as he starts at IBM on 2nd of September

15/5

Last Wednesday I had my follow-up appointment with Mr Rothenflu at Queens medical centre Notts. He was the Consultant spinal surgeon who gave me the spinal nerve block in March. He was pleased with my improvement and that I had, had some pain relief which had continued until now. This showed that he had hit the right place.  He advised that he would not attempt nerve or spinal surgery just now and would prefer to repeat the spinal nerve root block injs. as and when I need them,  he hopes for further improvement from them and an increase in pain relief which would allow me to reduce my pain relief meds. He did not want to refer me back to Pilgrim because of my previous experiences so he will see me himself in future.  I just need to contact him via my GP and he will see me ASAP.  He is prepared to give me up to 4 injections a year;  If the pain relief isn't managed by the four injections or the degree of pain relief does not improve he will re-consider spinal surgery. 
I am certainly relieved by this prognosis and diagnosis and hope that this nerve block from March lasts well into May or even June.

29/5

Andy and I drove to Farnborough Friday evening,  arriving for a very late night. Saturday we took Mollie to the shops,  mainly food shopping. Sunday we went to Hinton Ampner house in Hampshire for the day, we had lunch at a lovely country pub. Then drove home again arriving late Sunday night. Andy did lots of gardening on Monday I helped here and there a bit. Suzie arrived back to Birmingham airport on Tuesday evening from her holiday with Max in Netherlands. Suz got the train to Nottingham and we picked her up from her old University accommodation. Suzie spent some time with friends, as Andy had been at work. I do hope your house is coming along now. The photos of the kitchen looked exciting and the big windows look amazing. 

28/06

This afternoon Gareth received the results of three years of hard study at University of Leicester. 
He has been awarded a First Class Honours degree in Computer Science (BSc)
Gareth's graduation ceremony isat 11am on the 11th July 2013
Gareth, Andy, Suzie and I will all go to Leicester's De Montfort Hall. We will all stay overnight in Leicester As you can imagine we are very proud parents,  it is an amazing achievement. He was awarded 93% for his final project. 

17/07/13

We all had such a proud day last Thursday, it was a warm sunny dry day and everything went so well. We stayed overnight at the Holiday Inn, Leicester near to De Montfort Hall, where the ceremony was held. 
There are lots more photos which Suzie and Andy took and a set of official ones as well.
I will let you have a couple of photos from my phone for now. One on this email and a couple to follow.
It was a wonderful day, the Congregation went so well, all the graduands looking so smart. 

Jon Culshaw ( the comedian) was given an honourary degree ( Doctor of Laws) and a Distinguished Honourary Fellowship ( he already has the degree) was given to Ken Pounds who led the Dept. of Physics and Astronomy at Leicester and who still works as a research fellow at the University of Leicester.  He has had a full academic life and is CBE too. He discovered the 'Black Holes' and gave us a very interesting and amusing speech as did Jon Culshaw. 
Nicola Benedetti received an honourary degree Doctor of Music on the Friday as they held Congregations on Tuesday afternoon and on am and pm on Wednesday, Thursday and Friday.

We will be able to tell you more when we see you at Imogen's Christening.

Also hot off the press.
 Gareth heard yesterday that his offer on a 2 bedroom end terrace house in Fulbourn Cambridge has been accepted. He is completely delighted as it is around 20 mins walk from IBM and is a moderm house with its own garden. 
The landlord is freshly decorating it when the present people move out. It will be ready for him on the 5th August when he will collect the keys. Andy Gareth and I had been to Cambridge on Monday to view places  again and this was easily the best.

18/7

Imogen's Christening. With that date settled and Gareth suited for his new home, Andy and I are booked  for two days  in Amsterdam we will go by overnight P & O Ferry to Rotterdam. Then by coach to Amsterdam. We'll have two nights in a hotel 3 days to explore the city then the overnight ferry back to Hull. 
Hope  you are both okay and are both enjoying  the warm weather. It is making all the garden plants  grow such a lot. Andy has 2 weeks annual  leave, so we thought a little trip away  would be nice.

30/07

We are so hoping for good weather. Yesterday we had 20 mins of tremendous thunder storm with chunks of hail.

On 30 Jul

The plan is....
Lunch party at Charlotte and Andys from 12.30 onwards then over to Martock Church for a 4pm service then anyone who wants to back for light supper.
Clare et all aren’t coming as she is holding the keys for her practice as they have builders over the next 3 weekends. Mum and Dad are of course coming and Mark did make noises but I havent pushed the case.

Yesterday Andy drove Suzie and I down to Gareth's house. The last job was to get the three doors on his new IKEA wardrobes. He's managed without doors for a week. The job took a while as they are high rones and had to be screwed to the wall.The doors had soft close fittings so no slams, and   one is a mirror door. Gareth's new bed arrived during the week from Dreams  he managed to put that together and his bedside cupboard.  He also had a matching  chest of drawers luckily ready made. Andy and Gareth then fully loaded the car and went to the local tip with all the polystyrene,  cardboard,  boxes and plastic, it took two trips with the car completely filled. While they did that Suzie and I got the front and back grass cut, with the mower provided.  We also searched about in the garden, not much is really planted,  we found lots of strawberry runners coming from next door. A few overgrown french beans, and things are around, we pulled some weeds and put it all in his green garden wheelie bin he also has one for rubbish and one for re-cycling. Next Monday he starts his job with IBM. He is at Hursley Park for the first week,  for his induction. He's looking forward to meeting the friends he made last summer(2012). I had made a good salad type lunch and packed it in cool boxes with frozen blocks. It was lovely we christened his new table, chairs, cutlery, crockery, glasses etc. He is getting settled.  The ' pest man' came after getting fully suited he squirted some pesticide gas into the wasp nest, Gareth hasn't seen any more wasps come out of the porch cover since, neither did we. So it must have worked, he shouldn't have to get him back again. 

3/09.13 

Alice's last day for ULHT so sad.

19/09

Mum has consented to me explaining that she has had a bit of a problem with her health. Shortly after Dad's food impaction she went out to check her washing and remembers being at the top of the steps then she woke up on the gravel having hit her head/arm and having lost consciousness. This was just over 3 weeks ago. She didn't want to make a fuss and didn't want everyone worrying.

She didn't tell me until the next day and made light of it. I went round and checked her over, it is a miracle she didn't break any bones or really hurt her head. I insisted that she booked to see her GP and unfortunately I had to insist that she should not drive as per DVLA regulations after such an episode.

She did see her GP who did all the right things and also advised her not to drive. She is going next week to see the result of her tests and we are hoping she'll be allowed to start driving again. She's been fine since with no symptoms at all.

She did not have a seizure and we do not think this had anything to do with the meningioma. The steps leading down to the gravel on the left and very uneven and there is no handrail. I have asked her to get a builder to make a proper handrail, Dad has had a grab rail put in for his use but it is Mum who needs safety improved on those steps. It's possible that her hip may have given way and she pitched forward and ended up on the gravel.Or she may have had a temporary heart rhythm abnormality resulting in a faint.

I have been keeping a close eye on her and taking her shopping when needed. Dad has been driving the Primera(!) which Mum says is fine, but is it? She won't take a taxi - best solution- and had planned a bus journey ... She has been walking to Lordshill Sainsbury which she enjoys but I think Dad may have stopped her from doing that now. They have bought a new fridge freezer which means she can shop more effectively and they can always use Ocado/Tesco etc for food deliveries but they have been managing fine.

Dad is not bothered by the whole thing, I am concerned that she needs a proper handrail for all the garden steps. She did paint white lines on the steps in the garden which has improved visibility a bit. Can you both encourage them to get a builder to come round and do this for them? Dad was also talking about modifying the bathroom to make a walk in shower - they have a shower over the bath or a step up shower which he finds difficult - so he doesn't shower. Again it's an excellent idea but they need a builder who can manage this project for them He mentioned using the 'dressing room ' space leading into the above garage room but this would be a much bigger project and in my view not the right place to put this new bathroom.
24/09

Gareth's new address. So with this email I will address that and take the opportunity to send two photos of Gareth, one on the day of his graduation and one on the day he collected his keys.
Gareth received a First Class Honours degree in Computer Science from The University of Leicester. This was on the 11th July. He collected the keys to his house on the 5th August and we finally helped to move him in with the help of a large Enterprise hire van on the 15th of August. It was a family event as he and Suzie drove my car to Cambridge and Andy and I were in the van. After the van had been unloaded and we had our picnic lunch Andy and Gareth drove in the van to IKEA in Milton Keynes. 
Gareth bought a sofa, matching easy chair and TV etc and coffee tables, a dining table and 4 chairs, a large wardrobe with lots of fittings, and some kitchen utensils and cutlery. Thank goodness IKEA is good value. All these required putting together which took up most of the evening and the following Sunday. Gareth has even bought a new Dyson as the house is carpet throughout with almost new light brown carpets, except bathroom and kitchen/dining which is ceramic tiled in white tiles. He has a good sized lounge a kitchen/ dining area leading out to a decked area and then a mainly lawned garden with a few flower beds a shed and mower. The house is semi detached so has a side gate. Upstairs he has a small bedroom which is his study with his desks and a large double bedroom -finally with his new bed (Dreams took their time) and bookshelves and wardrobes. Lastly a bathroom with shower over the bath. He is simply delighted with his new home. 

Last weekend we visited and put up curtain poles and lounge curtains and nets for his kitchen window and dining area patio doors. 

He was so lucky to find such a good house in Cherry Hinton in the countryside near the airport just outside Cambridge. He is 15 minutes walk from a large Tesco ( which is on the way to work).
His new workplace at Fulborne is about 20mins walk from home.
Gareth is a Graduate software developer with IBM he started with them on the 2nd Sept spending a week of Induction at their HQ at Hursley Park, Winchester. 
So far he is enjoying it immensely and has already got a circle of graduate friends.

12/10/13

Yes my back/sciatica is much the same. I haven't been able to obtain any treatment from Nottingham hospitals they still aren't treating anyone from outside Nottinghamshire, so, as there isn't a spinal unit in Lincs I can't get another nerve root block injection. Just still waiting still from May 13. I did find recently a new hospital ( which is outside the NHS but treats NHS patients) in Peterborough I have an appointment with the consultant next Friday afternoon 18th October. I do hope he will be allowed to treat me and soon. 

I don't know if I told you but I couldn't see myself getting fixed and back to work before I had planned to retire next April 14 ( yes me retire ) so I resigned at the beginning of September this year. The occupational health and HR depts at Pilgrim hospital kept asking me to attend meetings and attend for consultations and appointments to discuss my problems, but didn't offer any help at all with getting any treatments. I eventually got fed up with all of it and resigned. I felt very sad that my NHS employment of such a long time had ended in this way but I had just simply had enough.

My hands also have been awful. The arthritis affected mostly my thumbs especially the joints they have been so swollen and I haven't been able to drive, type or write. I spent whole days just sitting at home with them wrapped in bags of frozen peas) which is why I haven't been emailing...I saw a physiotherapist ( at another of these slightly outside the NHS facilities, but who treat one under the NHS)  she specialises in giving steroid injections to swollen joints she saw me and gave me one injection to each thumb joint it wasn't nice at all. After the injection immediately they felt marvellous 'cos of the anaesthetic then after that wore off it was awful for several days when they were even worse, I wasn't able to manage at all really. Then after 4-5 days I noticed an improvement. I can't say they are back to normal but the swelling is much less and I can manage to drive long enough to get to town and can type for a while and can even sign my name ( which is useful). 

By the way Suzie has been back at the Boston Boots store for all of the summer really, maybe you thought she was still at Spalding. She is fortunate and travels to work usually with Andy, then when I've been able to drive the car to collect her and she drives home, or Suzie takes my car for the day. 

Next Friday (18th) after Andy and I attend the Peterborough spinal hospital in the early afternoon.( It is sort of on the way South)  we will drive down to Farnborough. We will spend the night with Mollie and on the Saturday morning take her for her 'flu jab and then drive down to Devon, near to Launceston. We have rented a lovely cottage (although it is called The Little Barn, it looks very modern and even has under-floor heating ) for a week in order to try to celebrate Mollie's 80th birthday. This has been such a hard couple of years and we wanted to do something special for her, a family party was out of the question, ( Andy, Michael, Sarah and Jon aren't up to that either anyway) but she felt she would manage a holiday with just Andy and I.
I have already ordered tickets for The Eden Project as a surprise using our Tesco vouchers, as Mollie hasn't been yet. Even if the weather is awful much is under cover and there are lovely places to eat. We plan to get to the beaches, probably just for a stroll or tea and will get to some of the interesting places nearby. I am searching through the National Trust properties nearby, so I hope we can somehow make our week special and enjoyable for her.  We leave the cottage on the Saturday mid-morning and Andy and I will stay overnight on the 26th with Mollie again in Farnborough and after lunch on Sunday we'll drive home as Andy will be back at work on Monday. 

Suzie isn't coming as she is working anyway ( although she is going to Leiden for a long weekend on the Wednesday, she's actually flying from Cambridge this time. 
Suzie has planned to drive my car and stay with Gareth overnight then he'll get her to the airport very early on Wednesday then he's at work as usual. Then Gareth will have the use of my car until Suzie gets back on Sunday 27th.   Lucky I left the car insurance as it was so Gareth is still insured. 

Good to hear that you both feel that you can manage the trip to Lanzarote and what a good idea to have Helen and James staying at the same time. Yes it probably does need that clear out!
I hadn't realised your last visit was so long ago. 


23/10

Andy and I have brought his Mum (Mollie) for a week to mid Devon,  we're staying in a lovely converted small barn in Quoditch near Ashwater and Holsworthy. It is her 80th Birthday and with the last 18 months she couldn't manage any sort of family party. We arrived Saturday pm to a complete deluge a Thunder and lightning storm & the barn was freezing. Much better now as we've sorted under floor heating and the wood-burner. Sunday to Atlantic outlet shops and to Exeter, Monday was Plymouth shops. Minimal walking though.
We've been driving around the villages,  beach at Bude and lots more. today we went to shops and  Boscastle. Tomorrow we've got tickets to the Eden project. I will do as much as I am able as my pain is causing me problems with walking even with loads of pain relief.  
We've had some really good meals out and especially yesterday for her birthday. Yummy :-)
Another event- On the 18th Nov I went to the Specialist spinal hospital in Peterborough I had a long consultation with the Spinal consultant surgeon and after he explained his findings from the MRI scan I agreed to spinal surgery to try and relieve my pain and numbness from the continuing sciatica. That is arranged for the 5th of November. So no time for me to backtrack. Rather scary. It is under the NHS  but is an independent hospital. I stay until the next afternoon and then come home. Then spend two weeks flat in bed getting up only very briefly,  week 3 and 4 up for half an hour occasionally then increasing slowly. Week 5 I go back to Peterborough hospital to see the Consultant surgeon.I just hope it works. NB I haven't told Mum or dad yet, please don't say anything til I have. It sounded like they've got colds etc. It was only last Friday I went on our way to Farnborough to collect Mollie.

31/10

Mum and Dad. There is a present of flowers with a nice a couple of  little treats on there way to you both, it will arrive tomorrow.  I am sorry that they will all be one day late.  Well there must be some Detsios left with me in not arranging it earlier ;-)  It does come with all our love and our sincerest Congratulations I do  remember very well u attending the 60th wedding anniversary of Grandma and Grandpa Turner,  they looked such a little old couple. You two have weathered better and look younger than your years. We will celebrate this amazing day more properly sometime soon, so just as soon as I can travel again. 
We all hope that you have had a nice day and maybe enjoyed some treats to celebrate such a milestone in life and your marriage

3/11

We had a lovely weekend together for Suzie's birthday ( thanks for her card and b'day money) Gareth came home on Friday evening after work. We had meals out all weekend no cooking for me. We drove him back this evening. He is very content and has settled at IBM so very well. He is still involved with the staff at Hursley Park Winchester as they are taking his project through and he is 'advising' them on his programing.  The 'new Grads' spend quite a lot of time at Gareth's as he's 25 minutes walk from work. Tesco is in between. Gareth is doing so well he's lost well over 20kg alreadyand needed new clothes.

16/11

Well to go back a little:-
On the 18th October Andy took me for my first consultation at the Peterborough Orthopaedic and Spinal Specialist Hospital. I saw the director of surgery. A really kind and caring man. He had a copy of my MRI scan from Queens Medical centre,  Nottingham and all my treatment details via my GP. This came about as Nottingham wouldn't continue with my treatment any more, as I live in Lincolnshire and sadly Lincolnshire doesn't have a Spinal Unit.  
Since May I have tried every avenue to obtain the treatment I am entitled to under the NHS charter. I spent hours phoning and  emails then finally resorting to the  NHS Ombudsman,  my local MP, PALS Lincolnshire and Nottinghamshire, my GP has tried so hard as well, I've contacted absolutely everyone. Sadly without any success. 

With the pain increasing and no possibility of an increase in my pain meds. I was getting desperate. Occupational health at work was just unhelpful.  I was regularly called in for examinations and useless 'support meetings'with my manager and HR.  In August I'd had enough as absolutely no one helped so very sadly I resigned my job in early September. I just couldn't see where My life was going.

The independent spinal hospital in Peterborough had started to  take a few NHS patients. My GP had heard about it and was fantastic. I was so fortunate (this upsets me considerably  I shouldn't have to plead, I've worked most of my life for the NHS and when I was in need it wouldn't help me) to get an appointment. The surgeon was generous with his time and after examination and lots of discussion gave me 3 choices,  1st to do nothing just continue with pain relief,  not an option really. 2nd to repeat the spinal nerve root block injections, which were slowly thinning my sciatic nerve as they are steroids, so not a long term solution either. Or 3rd very scarily the choice to have spinal decompression surgery. He would remove some of my lumbar disc L4/5 which was protruding and remove the bony growths near my spinal canal at L5/S1 which were causing the numbness. Andy and I took 2 minutes (after all the questions and his positive answers) to decide. He started to go through his diary, How about 5th of November? Hardly any time for me to think and backtrack. 
That was agreed.....somehow I would get there for 07:30 am.      and I would be treated in this lovely new and efficient hospital under the NHS.

We continued our journey south from Peterborough (our packed necessities and suitcases were ready in the boot) we were on our way to Farnborough to collect Mollie for a week in Devon. We had a lovely cottage in Ashwater near Holsworthy for a full week. It was Mollie's 80th Birthday and with the last 18 months she didn't want to have a big family party or anything similar. So we suggested a holiday, she thought and decided just the 3 of us and Devon was her choice. Andy drove us all over, Devon, Cornwall for lots of shopping to Plymouth, Exeter, Bideford, Barnstaple,  Liskeard, Bodmin. We had a wonderful (but oh so wet) day at the Eden project, we got around all the biomes, events and exhibitions,  luckily the land train was going so we didn't have to walk down or up again. Oh did I mention how it rained! Never mind we saw all the exotic plants for the spices, the Mediterranean plants and the others and had some lovely tea breaks,  meals and treats. Andy and I have been around 6x now but Mollie hadn't  been as yet.  Had the weather been better we'd have tried The Lost Gardens at Heligan.  We had trips to shopping outlets. Super lunches and evening meals out each day. And a special day out and evening meal on Mollie's 80th birthday.  We visited lots of towns, a few Moors, and the sea at several places in Devon and Cornwall, Boscastle,  Bideford, and more and Mmmm cream teas. Mollie enjoyed her holiday and despite the tremendous crashing thunderstorms most nights,  and rain almost every day and rather chilly weather conditions we had a lovely week. Luckily Mollie enjoys short bouts of shopping then a break for tea/coffee so  I managed our rather full week. Our little holiday cottage barn was new this year, modern with under floor heating, well furnished and equipped. We  had two lovely en-suite double bedrooms ours with French doors to the patio, a kitchen/dining area with a huge range cooker, but we didn't cook much beyond breakfasts
The living room had an efficient log burner it still had cottage character high oak barn beams etc etc and  lovely gardens ( not for in the cold weather and rain though) well equipped with bbq and lovely picnic tables and chairs. The views went on for miles as we were well off the beaten track. Down roads which seemed like  twisting rivers each morning and not really suitable for a Mondeo. The rain continued throughout our holiday but we found other things to do after dinner. We had relaxing evenings with the log burner crackling and WiFi ( so we could Skype with Suzie and Gareth ) and TV. We had brought lots of magazines and books. We didn't let the weather stop us, anyway I couldn't have walked much more.  Then after an enjoyable week we started to drive home to Farnborough on Saturday morning (26th) we had lots of stops and  went to the Clarks shopping Outlet at Street for a bit more shopping and lunch.
Andy and I stayed overnight in Farnborough and on Sunday Michael joined us for lunch at a restaurant. After lunch we took Mollie shopping to Tesco to fill her cupboards and then we set off for Boston going via Gareth in Cherry Hinton. We eventually      arrived early Sunday evening the road conditions were still rain and more rain. 

Suzie had, had my car for the week and she left it with Gareth when she flew from Cambridge airport to Amsterdam to stay with Max for nearly a week in Leiden. Gareth loved having a car for those few days, although he's becoming a much fitter young man walking to work, and carrying his shopping home. (Tesco is on his way home :-) Unfortunately with the awful storms both here and in Amsterdam the airline had to delay her flight from Sunday until Tuesday night and she had to take extra holidays.

All of a sudden I was having  pre - operation check ups at Peterborough. 
5th Nov. I was there for 7:30 am taken to my room for tests and being advised  by the surgeon, anaesthetist, nurses etc etc. Then a nervous wait as I was No2 on the list.  At around 11:40 I was wheeled off and didn't come-to until after 3 although I was apparently back in the ward at 1:30. At first I thought I felt quite ok although I didn't dare to move even my hands. Slowly things 'came to' again and I was aware of what had been done, drips up, regular checks of Bp, temp, etc etc. The nurses were amazing helping me with everything. I couldn't move by myself at all. I had to call to be raised  up to drink or eat and helped to the loo or washing. They were really wonderful.  Coming home was unbelievably awful, such pain as I really hadn't and couldn't sit. On reaching Boston my GP prescribed morphine liquid, we got home but very quickly Andy realised I wasn't managing at all. He phoned 11. The paramedics came and gave me entonox, and IV morphine. They persuaded me that I needed further help and carried me out to the ambulance and then to A & E at Pilgrim hospital where I quickly had more IV morphine. Luckily a Consultant who knows Andy monitored me and my pain for a while. I wanted to go home and didn't want to be admitted. They eventually got me by a wheelchair out to the car and Andy somehow managed to get me home. I don't recall any of that at all, the drugs must have been working well. 
I spent around 4 dreadfully awful days lying in bed and then 3 - 4 awful days then at last this week I had a better day on Wednesday. Since then I have been managing without the need of Oramorph. From Thursday I have been managing to get myself out of bed and am moving about a little easier. Being careful as I can't twist or bend. I'm allowed to get up for 5 mins every 2-3 hours sadly just for the loo, a brief wash, or to eat a bite, between my time is spent lying flat ( 1pillow ) I am very obedient to the surgeons instruction sheet.  No venturing downstairs. Next Tuesday the bulky dresssings and the Sutures come out as long as it looks healed.  The district nurse will visit and do it all. I hadn't dreamt the pain could be so severe and that I would be so helpless, although that is improving now. I now know he removed most of my L4/5 disc and some bony growths near my spinal canal. He did quite a lot more surgery than planned. 

Now I can look forward to improving slowly. I still have the pain and numbness but trust that will disappear eventually. I see the surgeon again at his hospital on the 11th of December. Then I hope to know more about everything. After 8 weeks I am allowed to drive, I just hope that I'm able to.

Andy has taken leave for a couple of weeks to look after me, but he was interviewing Thursday for his new Medicines safety assistant. Suzie has Thursdays ( & Sundays off ) so I had my helper. I have had to so completely rely on their help with everything.

I am so sorry that I just didn't manage to properly explain why your planned visit here just wasn't possible. I felt so sad to have to put you off. It's so long since we've been together. 

I've had a lot of difficult decisions about leaving work. I so hoped that I would get back again but they weren't giving me further time. I had to just manage one day at a time. I was trying to manage and cope with everything when that wasn't really possible. 

Some happy things thankfully in our lives are that Suzie and Gareth are busy, busy. Suzie has her training with Boots, and her Photography she has difficult decisions too. They don't yet know where Max can continue his ancient history studies. After his Masters degree next year he wants to continue with a PhD maybe here or maybe in Leiden. Suzie took my car for a while Thursday morning and went a couple of miles down to Frampton Marshes. The Autumn light was lovely. After a couple of hours she had taken some amazing photographs of the flowing reed beds and their flowers, geese, lovely skies and the marshlands with the lagoons of seawater. There are lots of ducks and waders there just now.  I can see the clouds zipping across the sky from my  Though I am told it's chilly. I watch some TV.

Gareth phones often as he walks home after work he sounds so happy with his life and works hard to keep his house tidy. I get photos of the changes in furniture layout. He is enjoying himself in Cambridge and especially his work at IBM. He is also still involved with the staff at Hursley Park, Winchester as IBM are still committed to working on his group's Extreme Blue project. This years group of  'Grads' spend lots of time together out of work too.

Yesterday Suzie was dressed up at work for Children in Need as a Flower Pot man, Bill or Ben -not sure which. she really enjoyed it and her patients were amused. 

18/11Today finds me adhering to the surgeons instruction sheet. Although I am not really able to do anything else,  I get up from bed ( lying flat with one pillow) every couple of hours,  and walk around upstairs for around 5 minutes. 
Yes I certainly am bored. It's difficult to read and TV isn't very interesting.  Andy came home at lunchtime today we had lunch together some nice roast chicken sandwiches, Suzie made them this morning for us.

Tomorrow morning the District nurse comes to remove the Sutures. I hope that it will have healed so they will be able to remove them and also the bulky dresssing, then maybe my back will feel easier. I still won't be able to bend at all or sit, so eating will still be standing and most of my day will still be lying down. But maybe it will feel better. 
I don't see the surgeon again until 11 December so I will have to be patient. At the moment I haven't really noticed any changes to the numbness or pain but again I was warned that it may take time. 

08/12

Next week I will have to try to recount the last few days. Yes we were afraid that we would be flooded.  Wyberton lost 20 metres of sea wall. We had coaches waiting at the junior school at 7:30pm Friday to evacuate us. We were ready to go in our cars though. The unusual surge amd the high tide at 7.2m over topped the sea defences and flooded factories on the industrial estate. Just beyond the first fields on the other side of Wyberton Low Road. Andy and Suzie spent their time moving what they could upstairs.  Our photo albums, books, documents, computers, etc etc. Furniture had to stay.  Andy sand bagged the front door with compost bags -best as he could.
We had two awful days 5th & 6th so many homes are flooded,  as they don't have power etc and are in emergency accommodation. The Boston Stump has 12' of water in the cellars. And damaged floors and fittings. Luckily Boots was just far enough away from the River and a little higher so they escaped the knee deep water. With the main roads closed it was difficult for Andy and Suzie to drive to work. Such sadness in Boston and so close to Christmas.
We were being watched,  and were kept safe. We are so thankful as the floodwaters were so close. 

Also I am improving,  Last Monday evening I had walked down the drive with Andy for 5 mins the first time I had left the house in 5 weeks. Which was Ok. Then on Saturday  I went for my first trip in the car, since 6th November,  just into town. 

